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2 Royal Parade 
Tilford Road 
Hindhead  
Surrey 
GU26 6TD 
 
Email: huntj@parliament.uk 
 

North Sea Transition Authority  
3rd Floor 
1 Marischal Square 
Broad Street 
Aberdeen 
AB10 1LP 
E:  stuart.payne@nstauthority.co.uk 
www.nstauthority.co.uk 

Date 5th February 2024 
 
 
Dear Jeremy 
 
UKOG (234) Ltd (“UKOG”) licence  
 
Thank you for your email of 23 January 2024 in relation to UKOG and its activities under Petroleum 
Exploration and Development Licence (PEDL) 234 at Dunsfold, Surrey.  
 
It may assist if I set out some background to the role of the North Sea Transition Authority (“NSTA”) 
as a regulator for the onshore industry in England, to avoid confusion, please note that in some 
information quoted below our previous operating name “Oil and Gas Authority” or “OGA” is used. 
 
The regulation of onshore activity in England involves a number of agencies including mineral 
planning authorities (“MPAs”), the Environment Agency and the Health & Safety Executive, each with 
different responsibilities.  The role of the NSTA is to regulate operational activity under the PEDL by 
the granting of licences and consents to conduct certain activities under the terms of the PEDL.  
Financial assessments of the capability of licensees are conducted with reference to any licensable 
activities or events which the licensee may apply for consent to the NSTA.    
 
Much onshore activity is regulated by the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (“TCPA”) which 
provides MPAs with the necessary powers to include conditions in planning permissions for the 
removal of plant and machinery from sites at the end of operations, and to ensure that the land is fully 
restored. Further powers are provided by the TCPA for MPAs to ensure that funding is available for 
these activities and to revisit permissions periodically to ensure that adequate controls are in place. 
 
Minerals guidance also makes clear that concerns about funding should be addressed through 
planning conditions. Indeed, the current guidance states that the MPA is responsible for ensuring the 
wells are decommissioned and abandoned and the site is restored.i MPAs have in practice included 
appropriate conditions requiring well abandonment in planning permissions. The position nationwide 
with regard to securing funding for such activity is not consistent.  However, Dorset County Council 
has secured in excess of £100 million for this purpose for the Wytch Farm oilfield.  
 
The TCPA (together with other legislation and guidance) provides the coherent framework for well 
abandonment and site restoration. MPAs have considerable powers to: (i) attach conditions and 
obligations to planning permissions, (ii) take financial security from minerals operators, (iii) order the 
removal of plant and machinery from mineral sites, and (iv) take enforcement action including by 
entering land, carrying out necessary actions and recovering the costs where it is able to do so. 
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Pre-drilling activity  
 
In response to your question about the kind of activity that would require UKOG to make an 
application to the NSTA, UKOG would need to apply to the NSTA for consent to commence the 
drilling of a well, but the types of pre-work that you outline (construction of an access road and a well 
pad) are matters covered by local planning.   
 
NSTA Financial capability assessments 
 
The NSTA’s Financial Guidance1 lists different activities/licence events where the licensee’s financial 
capability will be assessed.  These include “Licence award, Licence assignment, Innovate licence 
progression, Well consent, Field development, Change of control of licensee and Pipeline works 
authorisation” (paragraph 3.2).   
 
The NSTA’s financial assessment would be carried out in accordance with our published guidance 
when one of these events occurs.  However, the above list is not exhaustive and the NSTA may also 
apply this guidance in any other circumstances where a commitment to undertake an activity under 
the licence is made that will, or may, require material financial resources to discharge it.  
You also mention activities at Horsehill.  As and when an application is made to the NSTA, we will 
conduct a review of financial capabilities in line with our published guidance.  
 
Reliance by Third Parties 
 
In your email you refer to the “considerable store” placed by the Planning Inspector on the financial 
surveillance conducted by the NSTA. As described above, the NSTA undertakes financial 
assessments for specific purposes in connection with licence commitments and our Financial 
Guidance states  “Third parties should carry out their own due diligence and should not rely on any 
decision of the OGA concerning a person’s financial capability or otherwise.” (Paragraph 1.6).   
Our Financial Guidance also states that “the OGA will apply to assess financial capability in respect of 
certain licence events. It is not a substitute for any other financial assessments that may be carried 
out by other regulators including onshore, mineral planning authorities, and offshore the Department 
for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy’s Offshore Petroleum Regulator for Environment and 
Decommissioning (‘OPRED’) who may separately seek to satisfy themselves that an Applicant will be 
able to meet their obligations to decommission offshore installations.” (Paragraph 1.3) 
I hope that this information is of assistance. 
  
Yours sincerely 

Stuart Payne  
Chief Executive – NSTA  
 

 
i Paragraph 112 of the “Minerals Guidance on the planning for mineral extraction in plan making and the application 
process” (Minerals – Planning for Hydrocarbon Extraction), (extract follows): “Well decommissioning/abandonment – 
following exploration, the well is likely to suspended and abandoned for a period of time. Health and Safety Legislation 
requires its design and construction that, so far as reasonably practicable, there is no unplanned escape of fluids from it. 
The mineral planning authority is responsible for ensuring the wells are abandoned and the site is restored.” Paragraph: 
112 Reference ID: 27-112-20140306 Revision date: 06 03 2014.  

 
1 https://www.nstauthority.co.uk/media/8011/financial-guidance-august-2018.pdf 
 





 

 

Protect Dunsfold Ltd 
The Sun Inn Flat 

The Common 
Dunsfold 

Surrey 

GU8 4LE 

 

15 March 2024 

 

WSCC Planning and Regulatory Committee, 

County Hall, 

Chichester, PO19 1RQ 

 

Dear Sir, 

Re WSCC/046/23 and WSCC/047/23 re Wood barn Farm, Adversane Lane, Broadford 

Bridge, Billingshurst, West Sussex 

Protect Dunsfold is the campaign group formed to oppose onshore oil and gas 

exploration at Loxley in Surrey.  It is in the same PEDL licensing area as Broadford 

Bridge and in both cases planning consent has been granted to UKOG (234) Limited 

as Applicant.  UKOG (234) Limited (company number 07055133) is a wholly owned 

subsidiary of UK Oil and Gas plc (company number 05299925). 

We would urge West Sussex County Council (WSCC) as the Minerals Planning 

Authority to reject this application for an extension of this permission outright for 

the reasons given by other objectors including the Weald Action Group. 

If however WSCC is minded to grant the application then we believe WSCC should 

secure from the Applicant a financial bond to cover the full costs of site restoration 

at the end of the consented period for the reasons explained below.  

As has been made clear in a recent letter from the North Sea Transition Authority 

(NSTA) to the Rt Hon Jeremy Hunt MP of 5 February 2024 (enclosed), a Minerals 

Planning Authority (MPA) is responsible for obtaining site restoration.  To quote 

directly from the NSTA letter to Mr Hunt:- 



“Much onshore activity is regulated by the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 (“TCPA”) which provides MPAs with the necessary powers to include 

conditions in planning permissions for the removal of plant and machinery from 

sites at the end of operations, and to ensure that the land is fully restored. 

Further powers are provided by the TCPA for MPAs to ensure that funding is 

available for these activities and to revisit permissions periodically to ensure 

that adequate controls are in place.  

Minerals guidance also makes clear that concerns about funding should be 

addressed through planning conditions. Indeed, the current guidance states that 

the MPA is responsible for ensuring the wells are decommissioned and 

abandoned and the site is restored.i MPAs have in practice included 

appropriate conditions requiring well abandonment in planning permissions. 

The position nationwide with regard to securing funding for such activity is not 

consistent. However, Dorset County Council has secured in excess of £100 

million for this purpose for the Wytch Farm oilfield.” 

“i Paragraph 112 of the “Minerals Guidance on the planning for mineral extraction in plan making and the application 
process” (Minerals – Planning for Hydrocarbon Extraction), (extract follows): “Well decommissioning/abandonment – 
following exploration, the well is likely to suspended and abandoned for a period of time. Health and Safety 
Legislation requires its design and construction that, so far as reasonably practicable, there is no unplanned escape of 
fluids from it. The mineral planning authority is responsible for ensuring the wells are abandoned and the site is 
restored.” Paragraph: 112 Reference ID: 27-112-20140306 Revision date: 06 03 2014.” 

We also know that the NSTA itself has not assessed UKOG 234’s financial capability 

since 2017 or its parent UKOG Oil and Gas plc’s financial capability since 2019, see 

another letter from February 2020 also to Mr Hunt when what is now the NSTA was 

still known as the Oil and Gas Authority.  

The report to the WSCC Planning Committee for the meeting on 19 March does not 

actually identify the Applicant but the existing planning permission and the 

application to extend it are submitted by UKOG (234) Limited. While the precise 

identity of the applicant seeking a planning permission is generally not relevant, in 

this instance we believe it is highly relevant.   

According to the latest to Report and Financial Statements for UKOG (234) Ltd for 

financial year end 2022 (attached), the Applicant UKOG (234) Ltd continues to 

record annual losses and is being financially supported by its parent company UK Oil 

and Gas (see page 10 under the section “Going Concern).  UK Oil and Gas has seen 

its own share price drop dramatically since the last assessment made by the OGA in 

2019.  

Protect Dunsfold therefore believes that if WSCC does resolve to extend this 

planning consent it should impose a condition seeking a financial bond to cover the 



costs of site restoration. It can do this by giving delegated powers to officers to issue 

a consent, but only once a bond has been provided within a specified time period.   

Yours faithfully, 

 

K E Smyth 

Director, Protect Dunsfold 

 


	Kathy Smyth, Director, Protect Dunsfold Ltd  Objection 15-03-2024
	2022
	NSTA response to JH 05.02.2024
	OGA Letter to Jeremy Hunt
	Protect _Dunsfold _letter _toWSCCreBBMarch2024

